

# **ENVIRONMENT & ECONOMY SELECT COMMITTEE**

Date: Tuesday, 22 June 2021 Time: 6.00pm,

Location: Council Chamber, Daneshill House, Danestrete

Contact: Ramin Shams (01438) 242308 committees@stevenage.gov.uk

Members: Councillors: M Downing (Chair), A Mitchell CC (Vice-Chair), Ashley-Wren,

D Bainbridge, S Booth, A Brown, Kerby, M McKay, S Mead,

C Parris and S Speller

#### **AGENDA**

# PART 1

#### 1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

#### 2. TERMS OF REFERENCE

To note the Terms of Reference for the Environment and Economy Select Committee, as agreed at Annual Council on 26 May 2021. 3-4

## MINUTES - 13 JANUARY 2021

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 13 January 2021. 5-10

# 4. REPORT BACK FROM THE SUB GROUP LOOKING AT THE IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON YOUNG PEOPLE

To receive and consider the report back and recommendations from the Member sub group looking into the impact of Covid-19 on young people for the wider review. 11-22

# 5. ENVIRONMENT AND ECONOMY SELECT COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2021-22

To consider the Environment and Economy Select Committee's Work Programme for 2021-22.

23 - 28

#### 6. ACTION TRACKER

Members are invited to consider the action tracker for the Environment & Economy Select Committee and to note its content.

29 - 30

## 7. URGENT PART 1 BUSINESS

To consider any Part 1 business accepted by the Chair as urgent.

## 8. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

To consider the following motions -

- 1. That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as described in paragraphs1 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act as amended by Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006.
- 2. That Members consider the reasons for the following reports being in Part II and determine whether or not maintaining the exemption from disclosure of the information contained therein outweighs the public interest in disclosure.

## 9. URGENT PART II BUSINESS

To consider any Part II business accepted by the Chair as urgent.

Agenda Published 14 June 2021

## **ENVIRONMENT AND ECONOMY SELECT COMMITTEE**

- 1. Membership 11 (not Members of the Executive)
- 2. Quorum 4
- Terms of Reference
- 3.1 To determine a Scrutiny work programme to examine the spending, policies and administration of the Council's services within the purview of the Assistant Director (Regeneration), Assistant Director (Stevenage Direct Services (except caretaking and repairs)), Assistant Director (Housing Development) and Assistant Director (Planning & Regulatory) and relationships with partners and external agencies involved with these services, together with a timetable and method of study for each topic.
- 3.2 To determine formal recommendations in relation to scrutiny studies undertaken for reporting to the Council, Executive, other Committees, Officers and / or partner agencies as appropriate.
- 3.3 To review the Forward Plan of Key Decisions in relation to services within the Committee's remit, considering if it wishes to make any input to policy issues contained in the Plan and if so, how. In undertaking this work the Committee may call upon the relevant Executive Member and/or the Strategic Director to provide a briefing or take part in discussion.
- 3.4 To consider any policy issues within the remit of the Select Committee referred by the Executive and raising any other issues it considers appropriate.
- 3.5 To work with the Community Select Committee or the Overview & Scrutiny Committee, as appropriate when considering crosscutting scrutiny studies and policy development when both Committees have so agreed.
- 3.6 To consider matters referred to the Committee under the procedure for the Councillor Call for Action in relation to matters within the purview of the Assistant Director Stevenage Direct Services and Assistant Director Planning and Regulation.
- 3.7 In conjunction with the Community Select Committee and the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, responsibility for the ongoing development of the Policy Development and Scrutiny function of the Council.
- 3.8 To report to the Executive, other committees or Council, as appropriate.

#### STEVENAGE BOROUGH COUNCIL

# ENVIRONMENT & ECONOMY SELECT COMMITTEE MINUTES

Date: Wednesday, 13 January 2021 Time: 6.00pm Place: Virtual (via Zoom)

Present: Councillors: Michael Downing (Chair), Adam Mitchell CC (Vice Chair),

Doug Bainbridge, Sandra Barr, Stephen Booth, Adrian Brown, Jody Hanafin, Maureen McKay, Loraine Rossati and Simon Speller

Also in Councillors Lloyd Briscoe and Sharon Taylor CC, OBE

Attendance

**Start / End** Start Time: 6.00pm **Time:** End Time: 8.30pm

## 1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillor Dave Cullen.

Councillor Sharon Taylor declared an interest as a member of the Herts Local Enterprise Partnership.

#### 2 MINUTES - 10 NOVEMBER 2021

It was **RESOLVED** that the Minutes of the meeting of the Environment & Economy Select Committee meeting held on 10 November 2020 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

# 3 PRESENTATION FROM THE NORTH HERTS COLLEGE PRINCIPAL ON THE IMPACT OF COVID -19 PANDEMIC ON POST 16 EDUCATION

Kit Davies, Principal at North Herts College gave a presentation to the Committee on Education and Skills, the challenges and recovery from the Pandemic and responded to a number of questions from Members on the matter:

- In relation to blended learning, the principal advised that this was a
  combination of class learning and on-line learning. As the technology for
  learning had improved greatly he believed that this would continue to be a
  tool to be used post the Pandemic although a balance would need to be
  found to ensure the college continued to be an active vibrant space for
  students to learn:
- In response to a request from Councillor Speller, the Principal offered his help in Cllr Speller's work to construct a process map modelling what it was like to be young in Stevenage without the access to the technology or requirements to ensure the success of home learning;
- In response to a question regarding Kickstart, Members were advised that

this was an employment scheme which was a sub-group of the LEP and would be looking at data around apprenticeship numbers which were shortly to be released:

The Chair thanked the Principal for his presentation who advised that he would be happy to be contacted by any members of the Committee in relation to their work in this area.

It was **RESOLVED** that the presentation be noted.

# 4 INTERVIEWS FOR THE REVIEW OF THE ECONOMIC IMPACT OF COVID-19 PANDEMIC ON STEVENAGE

Helen Spencer – STEM Point East (Setpoint Hertfordshire) spoke about the work of STEM Point through schools and colleges and the concern that there was economic disparity between disadvantaged and better-off families.

Helen responded to a number of questions raised by members and offered support for Members in their work on process mapping those children who it was believed were getting left behind as a result of the Pandemic. Helen advised that there was a lot of work going on in terms of companies engaging with schools and that innovative ways of working were being looked at to keep the interest of the young people.

In response to a question Helen advised that STEMpoint was not so involved with special schools but did help out where requested and where they could. Other groups such as Youth Connexions, Scout Groups and the Young Enterprise Scheme at Lonsdale School had been working with STEMpoint but Helen asked that if any member had other connections that they would like her to link with to contact her directly.

Councillor Taylor, the Leader of the Council and Councillor Briscoe, Portfolio Holder for Economy, Enterprise and Transport attended the meeting to respond to a number of questions put to them by the Committee including:

- In relation to the Council carrying on a 'business as usual' service, it was noted that resources had been secured for additional staff in Environmental Health, Regeneration of the Town Centre continued to be prioritised and that it was hoped that the Pandemic had shown what could be achieved at a local level:
- It was agreed that this was an unprecedented year and an extremely difficult
  economic climate. It was hoped that Stevenage had the infrastructure to cope
  with new investment and the SG1 development scheme put the town in a
  better position to cope with the downturn. The larger industries would be less
  affected but the Town had a great entrepreneurial spirit as shown by the
  number of new businesses in the Indoor Market recently;
- Stevenage was already a business friendly destination and being announced as one of the destinations for the vaccination Centres had shown this;
- In terms of those low skilled in academic qualifications but potentially highly skilled in other ways, it was agreed that in relation to the Town Centre Bid and

where possible opportunities should be made available for those young people who could potentially get left behind. Work in this area was being undertaken by a number of organisations including WENTA and at the BTC. Entrepreneurial spirit would always be encouraged by the Council.

- The effect of the pandemic on a number of groups including low socio economic backgrounds, the young, people with disabilities and BAME communities was being considered by the Community Reassurance Cell and an action plan was being drawn up;
- In terms of lessons learnt, although the Pandemic was still ongoing, the Leader advised that she was immensely proud of the way the Council had responded and that a compelling case would be made to the Government on the strength of local services in responding to an emergency such as this.

The Chair thanked Helen Spencer and Councillors Taylor and Briscoe for their contributions to the meeting.

# 5 E&E MEMBER SUB-GROUP LOOKING AT THE ECONOMIC IMPACT ON YOUNG PEOPLE

The Committee received an update from Councillor Speller on the work of the Environment and Economy Sub-Group which had been looking at the economic impact on young people. In particular, the Group had focussed on those young people left behind, disadvantaged or vulnerable.

The Committee agreed that it would be good to see more young people from Stevenage working for the large companies in the Town.

The Chair thanked the Group for their work on this issue.

It was **RESOLVED** that the update be noted.

#### 6 COMPOSITE DOCUMENT OF EVIDENCE COMPILED FOR THE REVIEW

The Committee received the composite document of evidence compiled for the review. A number of officers who had contributed to the review updated the Committee on further information relating to their service areas including:

- Mena Caldbeck, Business Relationship Manager impact on young people Job Centre plus – YP targeted Kickstart Scheme;
- Gareth Wall, Corporate policy and Research Officer Impact on BAME communities;
- Chris Barnes, Assistant Director Regeneration Impact on the Town Centre Investment Plan and Stevenage Works;
- Paul Cheeseman, Community Development Officer Co-operative Economy Charter:
- James Chettleburgh, Principal Planning Officer Impact on private investment (planning and development activity).

The Chair then advised the Committee that due to the effects of the Pandemic on the Council and implications on staffing levels and work priorities, the next meeting of the Committee scheduled for February would not be taking place and the work of this Committee as well as the Community Select Committee was to be put on hold until the new Municipal Year. Background work and informal meetings with the Chair and Vice-Chair could continue if members wished to carry on gathering evidence.

The Chair thanked the officers and members of the Committee for their contributions to the review.

# 7 INTERIM REPORT & RECOMMENDATIONS OF NEIGHBOURHOOD CENTRES REVIEW

The Committee considered the interim report and recommendations of the review of the Neighbourhood Centres.

The Committee agreed to sign off the report due to the current situation with regard to the Pandemic and the pause with the work of the Committee. Members were pleased with the results of the Review so far and it was **RESOLVED**:

- That small scale timely interventions be made using what means are at the Council's disposal including its current regime of routine maintenance, cleansing, repair and using existing budgets or where appropriate the use of ward Members Local Community Budgets via funding bids as well as local County Councillors LCBs;
- 2. That partner authorities/partner bodies be approached to hold them to account for failure to maintain infrastructure.
- 3. That the Co-operative Neighbourhood Management approach to addressing local issues in the Neighbourhood Centres be monitored by the Executive Member with Portfolio responsibility for Neighbourhoods and Co-Operative Working to see if this is working (perhaps with a short repot back in a year to monitor progress and see if the interventions are timely and the resources are adequate to remedy problems that are identified at the Neighbourhood Centres).
- 4. That each Neighbourhood Centre area establishes a friends group to help with projects and community gardens at each Centre.
- 5. That the Head of Estates and the Assistant Director Housing Development be invited to a future meeting of the Committee to contribute to the recommendations with regard to these plans.

# 8 URGENT PART 1 BUSINESS

None.

# 9 EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

#### It was **RESOLVED**:

1. That, under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and

public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that they involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as described in paragraphs 1 to 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as amended by SI 2006 No. 88.

2. That having considered the reasons for the following item being in Part II, it be determined that maintaining the exemption from disclosure of the information contained therein outweighed the public interest in disclosure.

# 10 URGENT PART II BUSINESS

The Committee received and noted Coronavirus statistics for certain groups.

# **CHAIR**

This page is intentionally left blank



# Agenda Item 4 PART I Release to Press

Agenda

Item: 4

Meeting: ENVIRONMENT & ECONOMY SELECT COMMITTEE

Portfolio Area: Resources

Date: 22 JUNE 2021

# REPORT ON SUB GROUP LOOKING AT THE ECONOMIC IMPACT OF COVID -19 PANDEMIC ON YOUNG PEOPLE

Author – Stephen Weaver Ext No.2332 Lead Officer – Tom Pike/Steve Dupoy Ext No. Contact Officer – Stephen Weaver Ext No.2332

Contributors – Councillor Simon Speller, Chair of the Sub Group, Councillor Michael Downing, Chair of Environment & Economy Select Committee; Strategic Director, Tom Pike, Assistant Director, Steve Dupoy

#### 1 PURPOSE

1.1 To consider the report and suggested recommendations of the sub group of of the Environment & Economy Select Committee Scrutiny, looking at the impact of Covid-19 on Young People as part of the Committee's wider review of the economic impact of pandemic on Stevenage and on the Council's response.

#### 2 BACKGROUND & SCRUTINY ISSUE IDENTIFIED

2.1 The issue of scrutinising Stevenage's response to the Covid-19 pandemic and the local economic impact of the pandemic was agreed by the Select Committee as a scrutiny review item along with other scrutiny items when it met on 22 September 2020.

# 2.2 Scope and Focus of the sub group for the wider review

- 2.2.1 When the Committee met on 10 October 2020 and agreed a scope for the main review it was also agreed at that meeting to set up a sub group Chaired by Councillor Simon Speller. The sub group would meet informally and gather evidence to report back to the E&E Select Committee. The sub group agreed that it would look at the following issues affecting young people:
  - Meet with Schools Head Teachers, North Herts College Principal, HCC YCH Services for Young People and STEMPOINT East
  - Find out what are the main challenges to young people regarding Covid-19 in education and employment
  - Make recommendations for partners to work together to offer practical help for local young people

#### 2.3 Process of the review

2.3.1 The sub group met informally on four occasions in 2021 to undertake their review. The sub group met as follows: On 15 February, 26 February, 16 March and 31

- March 2021 and a number of the sub group met with the Leader and Executive Portfolio Holder with responsibility for Young People on two further occasions on 8 and 30 March 2021. In total there were six meetings of the sub group which were held virtually on zoom and notes of these meetings are available.
- 2.3.2 Councillors on the sub group: Cllr Simon Speller, Chair of the sub group, Cllr Michael Downing, Chair of the Environment and Economy Select Committee, Cllr Adam Mitchell, Vice-Chair of the E&E Select Committee, Cllr Sandra Barr, Cllr Maureen McKay.
- 2.3.3 The sub group were joined by the following people:
  - Helen Spencer, STEMPOINT East CE
  - Judith Sutton, Area Team Manager for North Herts & Stevenage HCC YCH Services for Young People
  - Kit Davies Principal and Chief Executive North Herts College
  - Sean Trimble Head Teacher Larwood School Stevenage
  - David Pearce Head Teacher Brandles School Baldock
  - Mark Lewis Head Teacher Alleyne's Academy
- 2.3.4 Members on the sub group are indebted to the external partners for their expert opinion and for the amount of time they provided to the groups meetings.
- 3 THE SUB GROUP'S FINDINGS
- 3.1 Conclusions of the Environment & Economy Select Committee sub group looking at the economic impact of Covid on young people
- 3.1.1 Based on the input provided to Members the sub group have made the following conclusions.
- 3.1.2 <u>Input from HCC YCH Services for Young People</u>
- 3.1.2.1 The sub group were joined by Judith Sutton HCC YCH Services for Young People focuses on the 16 to 18 age group School Years 11 & 12. The cohort size for 16 to 18 year olds in Stevenage as of 8 Feb 2021 is 2019 young people (two thousand and nineteen) of this 87 are NEET (Not in Employment, Education or Training) of this 67 are available for education, employment or training and 20 are unavailable due to medical incapacity etc. Of the 67 21 are aged 16 to 17 and 46 are 17 to 18. NEET per standout wards are 18 in Bedwell, 13 in Shephell and 12 in Martins Wood.
- 3.1.2.2 Historically the NEET numbers over the past decade has been between 5 and 4% of the cohort population. Overall career planning is going well.
- 3.1.2.3 There are two main County funded projects that YCH are focussing on to address NEETS- (i) Pathways to Success targeted at NEETS and preNEETS, funded to 2023 providing work experience and (ii) Herts Future Programme – building better futures for YP who are facing significant barriers to employment, education and training.
- 3.1.2.4 For ages 14 to 16 (School Years 9 & 10) the statutory responsibility for careers advice sits with Schools who buy in HCC services for guidance. All Careers advisers are trained to Level 6 Career Guidance.

- 3.1.2.5 YCH will be providing a programme of Summer Holiday Activities, this is a more targeted approach around gang and knife crime.
- 3.1.2.6 Herts HOP (Herts Opportunities Portal) has been considered a success. This had recently launched a support Apprenticeships Campaign for April 2021, over 400 YP applied in one day on the website, so there is clearly a large demand for this type of opportunity for young people.
- 3.1.2.7 YCH stated that they would like to work with SBC over the summer when things open up with play opportunities, to develop plans that complement each other and work together with staff resources where possible. Also there will be a need to address the gaps in fine motor skills and physical therapy that has been limited due to closed pools etc.

#### 3.1.3 Input from STEMPOINT

- 3.1.3.1 STEMPOINT East an educational charity based at MBDA with over 35 years of experience working with Employers and Young People bringing together the two groups who have a similar goal (seeking employment/and recruiting young people) but who often don't understand each other.
- 3.1.3.2 Helen Spencer STEMPOINT East CE provided the sub group with the following key input:
  - Helen Spencer suggested that the Gatsby benchmark for SEN students at schools should be something that the schools should focus on as this links to their statutory responsibility to provide career advice and the Careers lead at each school is the go to person rather than the subject specialist.
  - SPEMPOINT's view from talking to employers is that employers are very unlikely to offer work experience during the 2021 summer given their focus on recovering from the pandemic and with severe financial pressures
  - Helen Spencer shared her desire to provide something locally based on the
    discussion of the sub group, to this end she was interested in promoting and
    building "science capital" in young people who don't identify themselves as a
    STEM student by running a few hands on sessions throughout the summer.
    Perhaps using the STEM Centre at the Air Bus site, NH College PE
    Department, Canyon's Scout building and the environmental charity Waste Not
    Want Not. Helen was conscious that there could be a danger in over promising
    and under delivering and will largely depend on what is allowed regarding the
    Covid-19 pandemic. Any small scale project would at least show what demand
    there is. This project could be 4 dates over the summer split up into a number
    of 2 hour slots during the day.

## 3.1.4 <u>Input from Special Needs Schools – Larwood and Brandles</u>

3.1.4.1 The sub group received input from the Head Teachers Sean Trimble, Larwood Special Education Primary School based in Stevenage and David Pearce, Brandles a Special Educational Needs Secondary School in Baldock. Larwood Primary School aims to provide a nurturing environment for children with social, emotional and mental health related issues. Brandles School is based in Baldock but has a large cohort of students from Stevenage (70% Stevenage intake). Brandles School is a secondary school that specialises in catering for boys with emotional, behavioural and mental health needs.

- 3.1.4.2 There is a need to change the narrative to a consistent message of hope and positivity. Everyone is aware of the negative outcomes of Covid-19, all that young people are hearing in the media is that they will be the lost generation, that they are going to have to work harder, attend longer school days, shorter summer holidays etc. So many kids in all schools have been working incredibly hard so they need incentivising and positivity and opportunities not messages telling them that it's all doom and gloom, that there exam grades might be devalued and they'll have to work harder to get out of it.
- 3.1.4.3 Schools have been told that they have to submit their own assessed grades by 19 June rather than hold the normal external exams, this provides a long gap between the submission of all assessed course work/internal tests and the end of the school academic year for school leavers in June. The head teacher of Brandles made a request to Members and to all partners to consider a proposal to provide a positive summer experience for all of their school leaver's, including work experience, with 2 or 3 weeks work experience with big local employers to give them a taste of the working world.
- 3.1.4.4 Relationships are key for success with parents of disaffected young people who might be in danger of becoming NEET, using schools to facilitate trust in support where appropriate Dave Pearce Head Teacher at Brandles gave a good example of them operating a food bank to deliver parcels to families in need, which has given them a way in to talk to the parents who otherwise might be defensive.

# 3.1.5 Input from Kit Davies Principal at North Herts College

- 3.1.5.1 Long term impact of Covid on reluctant learners Kit Davies gave an insight into the challenges educators face. There is concern amongst all educators and all who work with young people that there could be a long term impact of Covid on young people. There is understandable worry about the fall out and the already hard to reach 5% could be joined by other disengaged YP. There are signs of disengagement from NH College students and the College has had to do interventions to arrest this trend, bringing in students for once a week sessions who are outside the key worker parents category.
- 3.1.5.2 Kit Davies shared with Members that work experience was a key issue that had been affected by the Covid-19 pandemic. Virtual work experiences have been offered but face-to-face work experiences have been knocked back a year if not longer. Kit works closely with Alleyne's Academy who are a Herts Career Hub school. It is important to offer businesses a package regarding work experience that embeds it into a wider offer of Corporate Social Responsibilities and finding the future pipe line of employable individuals.
- 3.1.5.3 Providing a support for the STEM Centre would be important as all emerge from Covid-19 and maximising this as an asset for Stevenage would be key. Airbus STEM Challenge has engaged over a yearlong project with young people who had been identified as being from lower socio economic backgrounds to offer more than a day/week experience to engage these young people in STEM.
- 3.1.5.4 Soft learning opportunities have been lost with no face-to-face engagement over the past year. This is what is currently missing for students, as schools have focused in on curriculum/exam content but lost out on experiential, behavioural, healthy mind set leading to volunteering, which is what employers are looking for as well as the academic qualifications.

- 3.1.6 Input from Mark Lewis Head Teacher at Alleyne's Academy
- 3.1.6.1 Alleyne's Academy is a Careers Hub School in Herts, Work with the LEP, Stevenage STEM Centre with the Air Bus which engages young people at Key Stage 2 in STEM.
- 3.1.6.2 Mark Lewis provided Members with an overview of the work as a Herts Careers Hub school, which had provided links with key employers. The best results had come through sustained relationships with the same employers. One such employer was the construction firm Wilmot Dixon who provided taster days working on a homeless hostel. The STEM Discovery Centre at Airbus working with the Alleyne's Academy, North Herts College and Herts LEP had been a very successful collaboration with 16,000 school visitors prior to the Covid pandemic. There was also a more in-depth offer to 20 students over 20 weeks at Airbus, mentoring students to inspire a career in STEM.
- 3.1.6.3 Soft learning opportunities have been lost with no face-to-face engagement over the past year. This is what is currently missing for students, as schools have focused in on curriculum/exam content but lost out on experiential, behavioural, healthy mind set leading to volunteering, which is what employers are looking for as well as the academic qualifications.
- 3.1.6.4 Catch up can happen but it doesn't have to happen overnight and isn't all about the academic subjects but it's about building confidence in young people and providing them with opportunities to catch up with lost experiences in the wider curriculum such as team building events, arts, sports, field trips etc. The narrative of "catch up" is damaging, negative and unhelpful. Teachers and schools are aware that there will need to be some catching up but they are confident that they can do this and the chances to do it will vary greatly depending on how long the schools have to do this, a year 7 student will have years to catch up compared to a school leaver who have no chance of catching up.

## 3.2 Case Studies

# 3.2.1 Case Study 1 - Waste Not Want Not - Brandles School - Cllr Sandra Barr

Councillor Sandra Barr provided a case study of links between the horticultural/environmental Charity, Waste Not Want Not, who had made links with special educational needs students from Brandles School, Bladock, who have a 70% student intact from Stevenage. The students had a very positive experience and had settled in very well with this charity. The students enjoyed and thrived in the very practical hands on work. Students who completed their garden projects at the charity received a certificate of completion, which, for some, might be the only evidence of achievement that they have whilst at school. Although on a small scale and only involving a few students, this case study shows the potential to unclock the skills and abilities of these students.

A possible recommendation based on this case study could be for all partners including schools, the third/voluntary sector and employers, both large and small, who identify their social responsibility and reach out to these students to provide similar opportunities, which in some cases could lead to employment.

# 3.2.2 Case Study 2 - Alleyne's Academy work as a Herts Careers Hub School with links to the STEM Centre and Air Bus

The sub group were impressed with the work that Thomas Alleyne had achieved as a Herts Careers Hub School. There was an in-depth offer to 20 students over 20 weeks at Airbus, mentoring students to inspire a career in STEM. This project was building confidence with these young people. A lesson from this work is that the best results had come through sustained relationships with the same employers. Thomas Alleyne were also working with other large local employers such as the construction firm Wilmot Dixon who provided taster days working on a homeless hostel. The STEM Discovery Centre at Airbus working with the Thomas Alleyne Academy, North Herts College and Herts LEP had been a very successful collaboration with 16,000 school visitors prior to the Covid pandemic.

A possible recommendation could be that all partners work together to establish how funding can be found to assist the STEM Centre to reopen successfully and to secure its future.

# 3.2.3 Case Study 3 - Working in micro areas (sub-neighbourhoods) to reach pre-NEET YP

Judith Sutton Area Team Manager for North Herts & Stevenage HCC YCH Services for Young People is working with a very local sub ward based initiative based in a Community Centre at the Oval with 8 or 9 Young People who would be in danger of becoming NEET. (This project has continued on-line during the various lockdowns but is planned to return to a physical meeting in May, should the Government's timetable for lifting restrictions still be on track by then). Judith works with local Schools who identify young people who would benefit from this type of intervention. There was interest from Helen Spencer at STEMPOINT, and Kit Davies NH College to work with SBC on this project at the Oval and perhaps look at other areas that Members mentioned for other youth outreach opportunities in Bedwell, Shephall and Martins Wood. Looking at working alongside young people and their families to encourage towards careers and employment in general

A possible recommendation linked to partners working in micro areas (subneighbourhoods) to reach pre-NEET young people, could be that the AD for Communities meet up with the interested parties from HCC YCH, STEMPOINT and NH College to explore what role SBC could do to roll out to other outreach opportunities as mentioned in the case study and to identify young people/families and possible micro ward areas where further work could be identified. In addition some HCC and SBC Local Community Budget funding could be targeted at a short term project to extend this initiative.

**3.2.4 Brandles Food Bank** – The sub group heard from Brandles School about the way they built relationships with Parents from families that may not respond to the more traditional ways of communications. Dave Pearce Head Teacher at Brandles gave a good example of the school operating a food bank to deliver parcels to families in need, which has given them a way in to talk to the parents who otherwise might be defensive. The example here that could be adopted by the Council and partner organisations is outreach working.

A possible recommendation for the sub group would be to ask the Executive to provide examples of where they are already doing this type of outreach through the Co-opertive Neighbourhood Management or other programme or to consider situations where the Council could reach out to vulnerable families to help their young people access services and opportunities.

#### 3.3 <u>Impact of Covid-19 on young people</u>

- 3.3.1 It has been well reported what the impact of Covid-19 has had on young people, including increased unemployment due to insecure employment status, increases in mental health problems and a less optimistic outlook for the future amongst young people. However, the sub group heard from educators and people working with young people who reported that they needed to hear a positive message for the future not what appears to be a doom laden prospect.
- 3.3.2 Employment rates for 16 to 24 year olds adversely impacted by Covid-19. Young people have been disproportionately affected as they are often in insecure employment sectors such as retail and hospitality and are just starting out in their careers. Some national data that supports the work that the sub group have been look at is around the impact of unemployment throughout the Covid-19 pandemic that the Resolution Foundation published in April 2021 "We find that 16-24-yearolds have accounted for a disproportionately large share (57 per cent) of the fall in employment that's occurred over the past year. But the impact of the Covid-19 crisis is also unequally spread within generations, including among today's young people. Before the onset of Covid-19 (Q2-Q4 2019), one-in-four (25 per cent) economically active Black 16-24-year-olds were unemployed, compared to one-in-ten (10 per cent) of their White counterparts. By Q2-Q4 2020, the unemployment rate rose to 34 per cent (a 9 percentage point increase) among Black young people and to 13 per cent (a 2 point rise) among White young people." So there is an ethnicity and age impact of the Covid-19 pandemic, and those who are young and black are affected more than those who are white and older, who would be more likely to be in employment, working from home or furloughed.

#### 3.3.3 Mental health impact – House of Lords study and First Young Minds report

A House of Lords Library study in September 2020 drew together the international data available at that time on the impact of the pandemic on mental health, the study stated that "showed an increase in depressive and anxious symptoms in children as a result of Covid-19. This is likely attributable to a wide range of factors, including:

- social isolation;
- anxiety about illness;

- uncertainty about the future; and
- strained familial relationships.
- 3.3.4 Increase in NEETS nationally The Times Education Supplement <a href="https://www.tes.com/news/covid-youth-unemployment-ons-huge-rise-young-people-classed-neet">https://www.tes.com/news/covid-youth-unemployment-ons-huge-rise-young-people-classed-neet</a> By March 2021 the biggest quarterly rise in NEETS has been reported which is directly attributed to the impact of Covid-19, this is up some 39,000 to just under 800,000. However the local position is not so bleak although there has been an increase it should be seen in a County that has relatively low numbers of NEETS see 3.1.3 which shows that there are 67 young people who are not medically incapacitated who are not in full time education, training or employment according to data available for 8 February 2021.
- 3.3.5 Regarding careers pathways often young people who would become NEET struggle with the decision making and need support and this in turn is not helped by some family backgrounds that do not offer practical help and guidance to their children and Members on the sub group suggested that they wanted the report to reflect this reality.
- 3.4 Long term impact of Covid-19 on reluctant learners
- 3.4.1 Kit Davies gave an insight into the challenges educators face. There is concern amongst all educators and all who work with young people that there could be a long term impact of Covid-19 on young people. There is understandable worry about the fall out and the already hard to reach 5% could be joined by other disengaged YP. There are signs of disengagement from NH College students and the College has had to do interventions to arrest this trend, bringing in students for once a week sessions who are outside the key worker parents category.
- 3.5 The informal partnership between SBC, NH College and the JCP (Job Centre Plus)
- 3.5.1 This is partners with a common goal who are able to pool resources, funding and work together on ideas to meet common challenges. Kit sees that partners could work together to replicate the successes of the Adult back to work model with Young People. This could combine with very local sub-neighbourhood working to provide intervention to the young people in an area. To this end Cllr Simon Speller suggested that it would be good to get Rob Gregory SBC Assistant Director Communities to work with the sub-group on these ideas and see how this could tie in with the Council's co-operative Neighbourhood Management model
- 3.6 Plethora of Government schemes the challenge is looking for the 'Venn overlap'
- 3.6.1 There are a lot of Government schemes, ranging from the Department of Works & Pension, Education Department and the LEP, to name but a few, which are all responding to same or overlapping priorities with a scatter gun approach. These schemes all have the same goal so this is having an effect of replicating the same initiatives. Finding the 'Venn overlap' in the Venn diagram is the challenge and partners should be looking to do this where possible. Small local initiatives that can tap into larger projects (SG1 and example) are where the opportunities can be found.

# 3.7 Digital Poverty

- 3.7.1 As part of the review the sub group were keen to find out what the local levels of digital poverty were. Members realised that this would be difficult to determine with no easy way of gauging this measure. Anecdotally, Members via their Local Community Budgets have supported young people who are in digital poverty from March 2020 with the first Covid-19 lockdown to the end of the 2020-21 Municipal Year, with a total of £6,376 (just under 6.5% of the total annual LCB budget) LCB funding towards Schools/pupils digital poverty projects. This isn't a definitive measure of the local digital poverty levels but these discretionary awards of Local Community Budgets shows that there is clearly digital poverty in Stevenage for pupils from families who do not have access to technology at home and suffer from digital poverty.
- 3.7.2 It is worth noting that from the input received from the head teachers interviewed that there is a mixed picture with digital poverty/digital divide and the impact this is having on young people, as some students specifically struggle studying if there home environment is not conducive to online studying but some students have thrived an prefer this way of learning.

#### 3.8 Work Experience

- 3.8.1 From an early stage in the sub groups meetings the education partners who joined the sub group suggested that a recommendation of the group should be to encourage partners to provide a work experience for young people in Stevenage. Historically work experience has been difficult for young people to arrange if they do not have social networks to draw upon and schools have found it hard to make the links to local employers leaving the students and their families to make this connection. The head teachers who spoke to the sub group and an ex teacher on the sub group attested that it couldn't be overstated the benefits and positive experience that a good work experience placement can make to a young person. In particular, good work experience for students that struggle academically was vital. The outcomes for the most vulnerable students are often very positive if they are able to get onto a week's work experience that suits their skills. The head teachers suggested that if the Council and partners could help assist students by linking them to local employers this would be a positive experience for them to counter the negative narrative of Covid-19.
- Initially the sub group were pushing this opportunity as an early recommendation and to this end sought an early meeting with the Executive Portfolio Holder for Young People and with the Leader to see if this could be initiated as a project for the summer of 2021. During these discussions it became clear that this was a larger project in both logistics and manpower and financial resources than the Council could manage in its current circumstances, in addition STEMPOINT suggested that based on their discussions that they have had with local employers, employers will not be in a position this summer to offer work experience placements as they are focusing on their core business recovering from the pandemic, but this should go forward as a recommendation for the Executive to consider for 2022, where external funding can be sought along with Council pump prime funding and a project lead identified.

## 3.9 Summer of positive experiences 2021

3.9.1 An initiative that the sub group were very keen to promote as a recommendation was to provide a summer of positive experiences for young people. This was to act

- as a counter point to the negative narrative that young people are being presented with regarding their future prospects.
- 3.9.2 It was noted that the work experience proposal was not a viable option for this summer.
- 3.9.3 The STEMPOINT East CE Helen Spencer expressed her desire to provide something locally based on the discussion of the sub group, to this end she was interested in promoting and building "science capital" in young people who don't identify themselves as a STEM student by running a few hands on sessions throughout the summer. Perhaps using the STEM Centre at the Air Bus site, NH College PE Department, Canyon's Scout building and the environmental charity Waste Not Want Not. Helen was conscious that there could be a danger in over promising and under delivering and will largely depend on what is allowed regarding the Covid-19 pandemic. Any small scale project would at least show what demand there is. This project could be 4 dates over the summer split up into a number of 2 hour slots during the day.
- 3.10 In addition members should note that Stevenage has a disproportionately high Special Needs student population compared to the rest of the County so the Council should continue to work with the County Council regarding education provision and Children's services as well as the relevant Government office to make the case for a greater share of resources to support these vulnerable young people.

## 3.11 Equalities & Diversity issues

- 3.11.1 The principle equalities and diversity issue for the sub groups report is age and socio economic backgrounds. The International Labour Organisation has reported in June 2021 that "the unemployment rate among young people was 14.6% in 2020, according to the ILO." BBC News 9 June 2021. This is for the 15 to 24 year old age range.
- 3.11.2 The report of the sub group has shown that young people from lower socioeconomic backgrounds tend to find the transition into further education, work experience or employment harder to negotiate than young people from high socioeconomic backgrounds.
- 3.11.3 The report did not focus on gender, wider physical disabilities or ethnicity issues but there has been nationally recognised studies that have highlighted the unequal way they pandemic is affecting people from these groups.

#### 4 RECOMMENDATIONS

4.1 That the Environment & Economy Select Committee considers the findings of the sub group, contained within this report and the recommendations below be adopted by the Committee and in due course be presented to the Leader and the Executive Portfolio Holder for Children, Young People, Leisure and Culture and the Executive Portfolio Holders for Neighbourhoods and Co-operative Council and Communities, Community Safety and Equalities and Executive Portfolio Holder for Economy, Enterprise and Transport and the Assistant Director Stevenage Direct Services, Steve Dupoy and Strategic Director, Tom Pike and that a response be provided from these and any other named officers and partners within two months of the publishing of this report.

#### Near Horizon Recommendations

- 4.2 That the Executive support, with whatever means are at its disposal (in kind buildings/officer time/ promote via LCB funding), the efforts of STEMPOINT East to provide some hands on events (This project could be 4 dates over the summer split up into a number of 2 hour slots during the day.) of STEM sessions looking to promote and build "science capital" in young people. These events would not be billed as STEM, but aimed at young people who don't identify themselves as a STEM student. Possible venues could be perhaps using the STEM Centre at the Air Bus site, NH College PE Department, Canyon's Scout building and the environmental charity Waste Not Want Not. Any small scale project would at least show what demand there is for a larger scale repeat later in the year or in 2022.
- 4.3 A recommendation linked to the case study of partners working in micro areas (subneighbourhoods) to reach pre-NEET young people, could be that the AD for Communities meet up with the interested parties from HCC YCH, STEMPOINT and NH College to explore what role SBC could do to roll out to other outreach opportunities as mentioned in the case study and to identify young people/families and possible micro ward areas where further work could be identified. In addition some HCC and SBC Local Community Budget funding could be targeted at a short term project to extend this initiative.
- 4.4 A recommendation linked to the case study of Brandles School example of their foodbank outreach to vulnerable families. Scrutiny could ask the Executive to provide examples of where they are already doing this type of outreach through the Co-operative Neighbourhood Management or other programme or to consider situations where the Council could reach out to vulnerable families to help their young people access services and opportunities.
- 4.5 Working in micro areas (sub-neighbourhoods) to reach pre-NEET young people. During the sub group meetings there was interest from Helen, Judith and Kit to work with SBC on a very local sub ward based initiative based in a Community Centre, building on the work that Judith is already doing at the Oval project with 8 or 9 Young People who would be in danger of becoming NEET. (This project has continued on-line during the various lockdowns but is planned to return to a physical meeting in April, should restrictions be lifted by then). Judith works with local Schools who identify young people who would benefit from this type of intervention. Members mentioned other youth outreach opportunities in Bedwell, Shephall and Martins Wood. Look at family encouragement towards careers and employment in general. The sub group see this as a very good initiative and would like the Executive and the Assistant Director Communities to meet up with the interested parties mentioned to further develop this project.

#### Far Horizon Recommendations

4.6 A recommendation that the Executive should work with partners, including schools, the third/voluntary sector and employers, both large and small, who identify their social responsibility, seek funding sources and a project lead/project manager to establish a local work experience project for Stevenage school leavers in 2022 to enable them to find local employers who can offer work experience. As detailed in the report this is of great value to young people who often struggle to find good work experience opportunities and when done successfully like the Brandles Waste Not Want Not case study, gives students who struggle at school an invaluable

confidence boost and in some cases could lead to employment. This should go forward as a recommendation for the Executive to consider for 2022, with initially Council pump prime funding and external funding identified along and a project lead.

4.7 A recommendation linked to the case study of Herts Careers School Hub that all partners work together to establish how funding can be found to assist the STEM Centre to reopen successfully and to secure its future.

# 5.1 Financial Implications

There are no direct financial implications in this report. Any funding for the near horizon recommendations would need to be covered within Members Local Community Budgets and for far horizon recommendations then funding bids would need to be submitted into the budget process.

# 5.2 Legal Implications

There are no direct legal implications for this report.

## 5.3 Equalities Implications

The Equalities implications have been addressed within the report at paragraph 3.11.1; 3.11.2. and 3.11.3 There are no further direct equalities implications for this report.

#### **BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS**

**APPENDICES** - None

## **BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS –** Notes of the sub group:

- 1. 15 02 21
- 2. 26 02 21
- 3. 08 03 21
- 4. 16 03 21
- 5. 30 03 21
- 6.310321

Lead AD	AD (Stevenage Direct
	Services) Steve Dupoy
Deputy	AD (Planning &
	Regulation) Zayd Al-
	Jawad
Chair	Cllr Michael Downing
Vice-Chair	Cllr Adam Mitchell

**Environment & Economy Select Committee Scrutiny Work Programme 2021-22** (Including main review items, one-off meetings, review revisits and policy development items)

The work programme is the main guide to the Committee's work throughout the year. However individual items can be raised at Committee meetings and consider as one-off items on a case by case basis at future meetings.

Scrutiny Review items 2021/22: Priority of potential scrutiny we view items High/Medium/Low and suitability in 2020/21)	Strategic Director, Assistant Director, Lead Officer(s) & Portfolio Holder	Provisional meeting date(s) identified	Other details: i.e. (i) Number of meetings item can be covered in? (ii) Whether scoping required? (iii)Expectation/ style of meeting & (iv) other details	Comment by lead Assistant Director/Deputy	Chair/ Vice-Chair Preference & Priority
(High Priority) Continue the Scrutiny of the impact of Covid-19 on Economic Development in Stevenage and the Council's response	SD Tom Pike, AD Planning & Regulation Zayd Al-Jawed. Executive Portfolio Holder for Economy, Enterprise & Transport, Cllr Lloyd Briscoe	June 2021 (i) to bring back the report & recommendations of sub group looking at the impact of Covid-19 on young people and (ii) to agree any further evidence and meetings required to complete the review.	(i) Would require a number of further meetings to complete the review; (ii) a full scope was completed; (iii) gathering evidence/data, interview witnesses.		High priority

Scrutiny Review items 2021/22: (Priority of potential scrutiny review items High/Medium/Low and suitability in 2020/21)	Strategic Director, Assistant Director, Lead Officer(s) & Portfolio Holder	Provisional meeting date(s) identified	Other details: i.e. (i) Number of meetings item can be covered in? (ii) Whether scoping required? (iii)Expectation/ style of meeting & (iv) other details	Comment by lead Assistant Director/Deputy	Chair/ Vice-Chair Preference & Priority
(High Priority) Scrutinise the Council's Climate Emergency Strategy Action Plan – rather than Scoping a Separate review the focus would be an scrutinising the Action Plan (coincide with the consultation results)	SD Tom Pike, AD Planning & Regulation Zayd Al-Jawed. Executive Portfolio Holder for the Environment & Regeneration, Cllr John Gardner	Begin in quarter 3 of 2021 start of the review of the Action Plan consultation responses.	(i) Likely to be two meetings this municipal year and could lead to a separate piece of work in the following Municipal year; (ii) agreed that a full scope not required for reviewing the Action Plan consultation responses;(iii) this work could capture and note and potential future work streams but should concentrate on scrutinising the Action Plan.	A summary of the work undertaken to reach the Climate Emergency Action Plan could be provided by way of a presentation to Members when the Committee meets.  When the Committee has looked at the Council's Climate Emergency Strategy Action Plan, some sessions can be set up with each Executive Portfolio Holder to interview them on the Climate Emergency & the	

Scrutiny Review items 2021/22: (Priority of potential scrutiny review items High/Medium/Low and suitability in 2020/21)	Strategic Director, Assistant Director, Lead Officer(s) & Portfolio Holder	Provisional meeting date(s) identified	Other details: i.e. (i) Number of meetings item can be covered in? (ii) Whether scoping required? (iii)Expectation/ style of meeting & (iv) other details	Comment by lead Assistant Director/Deputy	Chair/ Vice-Chair Preference & Priority
				implications for their area taking this work into the following Municipal Year.	
(Low Priority) Update on the 2016 Business Echnology Centre Review	Assistant Director (Planning & Regulation) Zayd Al-Jawad, Portfolio Holder for Economy, Enterprise & Transport, Lloyd Briscoe	Item to remain on the Work Programme and Possible be scheduled in 2020/21 – considering delivery of the WENTA contract (July 2019)	This could be a one-off update.	The Assistant Director (Planning & Regulation) can update Members on the agreed contract renewal and expected outputs from the new contracts.	

Scrutiny Items:	Provisional meeting date(s) identified	Number of meetings item can be covered in?	Expectation/ Style of meeting/ date	Scoping details (whether full scope or simple scope required)	Other details	Comment by lead Assistant Director/ Deputy	Complete  ✓ ×
Local Neighbourhood Centres – Consider the Executive Portfolio Holder Response	July 2021	(i) This would be a one-off meeting. Members may choose to bring back at a future date for further monitoring.					

Policy Development Items:	Strategic Director, Assistant Director, Lead Officer(s) & Portfolio Holder	Provisional meeting date(s) identified	Number of meetings item can be covered in?	Expectation/Style of meeting	Scoping details (whether full scope or simple scope)	Other details	Comment by lead Assistant Director/ Deputy
Bulky Waste Charging Proposal – Officer Key Decision in July 2021		June 2021- To be arranged					
Indoor Market –  Medium Term Investment Business Case - Part II Report		July 2021 – To be arranged					
Final Future Town Future Parking Strategy		Has this been considered previously by Members at a PHAG?					
Parks & Open Space Strategy – March 2022 Executive		Jan/Feb 2021 – To be arranged					
Tree & Woodland Strategy – March 2022 Executive		Jan/Feb 2021 – To be arranged					

This page is intentionally left blank

Review Title &		Scoping/started	Review start	· ·	Key Recommendations	Executive Portfolio	Date brought back
Committee	to the work	complete/updat		completed)		Holder Response	to Committee for
Environment &	<u>13/03/19</u>	<u>25/06/19</u>	11/02/2020,	Complete - 13 01 2021	1 - Small scale timely interventions including routine	05-Jul-21	To be scheduled
Economy -			10/03/2020 &		maintenance, cleansing, repair and using existing		
Neighbourrhoo			22/09/2020		budgets/Local Community Budgets via funding		
d Centres					bids as well as local HCC LCBs. 2 -Approach partner		
					authorities/partner bodies to hold them to account for		
					failure to maintain infrastructure. 3 - That the Co-		
					operative Neighbourhood		
					Management approach to addressing local issues in the		
					Neighbourhood		
					Centres be monitored by the Executive Member with		
					Portfolio responsibility		
					for Neighbourhoods and Co-Operative Working to see if		
					this is working. <b>4</b> - That each Neighbourhood Centre		
					area establishes a friends group to help with projects		
					and community gardens at each Centre. 5 - When		
					Members have met with Head of Estates and AD		
_					Housing Development they will then be able to include		
၂ ရွ					a relevant recommendation in regard of these plans.		
Page							
29							
Environment &	13/03/19	25/06/19	25/06/2019	Complete 20/11/2019	1 - That Officers be requested to approach Post Office	N/A	To be scheduled
Economy - Post			03/09/19 &	Members wish to keep	Ltd to seek provision of an emergency post office the		
Offices			20/11/19	an eye on the progess	Old Town and to provide such assistance as necessary		
				with a replacement	to facilitate the arrangement. 2 - That the subject of		
				Post Office in the Old	post office provision be reviewed at a meeting in the		
				Town.	New Year.		

Review Title &	Date added	Scoping/started	Review start	Review Status (date if	Key Recommendations	Executive Portfolio	Date brought back
Committee	to the work	complete/updat	date	completed)		Holder Response	to Committee for
Environment &	13/06/18	N/A 2nd meeting	Initail meeting	Commitment from GTR	(i) the Committee considers holding a follow up	N/A	29 07 2019 for
Economy - Rail		28/02/2019	18/10/2018	& Railtrack to bring an	meeting for all stakeholders in the spring of 2019,		update. Any
Station Update			then update	update to the	following the December 2018 timetable changes		further date to be
			follow ups on	Committee. With the	(February/March) (ii) That GTR and other operators		<u>scheduled</u>
			28/02/2019 &	changes announced by	provide statistics about the number of Stevenage		
			29/07/2019	the Government in	commuters at peak times (iii) There were a number of		
				May 2021 regarding	other receommendations regarding consultaion with		
				the part nationalisation	users and with the Council and specifically the		
				of the rail infastructure	shceduled May 2019 Timetable changes. Finally in July		
				with Great British	2019 the Committee noted the updates on the		
				Railways for 2023 an	Stevenage Turnback (5th Platform) project, the Govia		
				early update from the	Thameslink Spring 2019 timetable and the wider works		
				industry would be	along the East Coast Main Line in support of the King's		
				welcome.	Cross remodelling project.		
Indoor Market	01/02/17	02/07/17	Daviou mat	16/01/10	Engage on outernal company to carry out market	21/02/10	02/12/10
Indoor Market	01/03/17	03/07/17	Review met	16/01/18	Engage an external company to carry out market research to find out what kind of market offer local	21/03/18	03/12/18
			on 5				
Page			occassions from 02/0717		people want. Other recommendations included: (1)		
ge			from 03/0717 to 16/01/18		restore access to the multi-storey car park (2) incentives		
30			10 10/01/18		for Market Traders to keep to the opening trading times and days (3) consider options open to varying the car		
					parking charges (4) Town Centre Manager to		
					incorporate the Indoor Market into Town Centre events		
					(5) discuss with the MTA ways to encourage a wider		
					diversity of traders in the Market (6) staggered rent for		
					new traders (7) promote other uses of void spaces and		
					to casual traders (8) options for a future alternative		
					location for the indoor market be included in the town		
					centre regeneration plans (9) if a wholesale move for		
					the indoor market can't be achieved then purchase a		
					Ismaller satellite retail site with footfall from the town		
					centre be considered for a smaller reconfigured market		
					with a focus on business start-ups in the regenerated		
					Town Centre (10) consider approaching an independent		
					company to administrate the market on a commercial		
					basis for the Council		
					Substitution of the Council		